C ommit tee Ag en d a

AREA PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE WEST
Wednesday, 7th April, 2021
You are invited to attend the next meeting of Area Planning Sub-Committee West, which
will be held as a:

Virtual Meeting on Zoom
on Wednesday, 7th April, 2021
at 7.00 pm.
Georgina Blakemore
Chief Executive
Democratic Services
Officer

Democratic Services Tel: (01992) 564243
Email: democraticservices@eppingforestdc.gov.uk

Members:
Councillors D Dorrell (Chairman), J Lea (Vice-Chairman), N Avey, R Bassett, S Heather,
H Kane, S Kane, Y Knight, J Leppert, A Mitchell, D Plummer, M Sartin and D Stocker

WEBCASTING/FILMING NOTICE (VIRTUAL MEETINGS)
Please note: this meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the
Council's internet site - at the start of the meeting the Chairman will confirm if all or
part of the meeting is being filmed.
You should be aware that the Council is a Data Controller under the Data Protection
Act. Data collected during this webcast will be retained in accordance with the
Council’s published policy.
Therefore by participating in this virtual meeting, you are consenting to being filmed
and to the possible use of those images and sound recordings for webcasting and/or
training purposes. If members of the public do not wish to have their image captured
they should ensure that their video setting throughout the virtual meeting is turned
off and set to audio only.
In the event that technical difficulties interrupt the virtual meeting that cannot be
overcome, the Chairman may need to adjourn the meeting.
If you have any queries regarding this,
Communications Manager on 01992 564039.

1

please

contact

the

Corporate

Area Planning Sub-Committee West

1.

Wednesday, 7 April 2021

WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION
1. This virtual meeting is to be webcast. Members are reminded of the need to unmute
before speaking.
2. The Chairman will read the following announcement:
“I would like to remind everyone present that this meeting will be broadcast live to the
internet (or filmed) and will be capable of repeated viewing (or another use by such
third parties).
Please could I also remind Members of the Public who have registered to speak that
they will be admitted to the meeting at the appropriate time.
Please also be aware that if technical difficulties interrupt the meeting that cannot be
overcome, I may need to adjourn the meeting.”

2.

ADVICE TO PUBLIC AND SPEAKERS ATTENDING THE COUNCIL PLANNING
SUB-COMMITTEES (Pages 5 - 8)
General advice to people attending the meeting is attached.

3.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

4.

MINUTES (Pages 9 - 12)
To confirm the minutes of the last meeting of the Sub-Committee held on 10 March
2021.

5.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
To declare interests in any item on this agenda.

6.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS
Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972, requires that the permission of
the Chairman be obtained, after prior notice to the Chief Executive, before urgent
business not specified in the agenda (including a supplementary agenda of which the
statutory period of notice has been given) may be transacted.

7.

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT LOCAL PLAN SUBMISSION VERSION - PLANNING
POLICY BRIEFING NOTE
A Planning Policy Briefing Note (March 2018) has been produced by the Planning
Policy Team to ensure that a consistent approach is taken to the provision of planning
policy advice for the District, particularly in relation to the Epping Forest District Local
Plan Submission Version, which was published on 18 December 2017.
The primary purpose of the Planning Policy Briefing Note is to inform the development
management process and to provide assistance for Development Management
Officers, Councillors, applicants and planning agents. The Planning Policy Briefing
Note is available at:
http://www.efdclocalplan.org/wp-content/uploads/2018/03/Planning-Policy-BriefingNote_Mar-2018.pdf
2

Area Planning Sub-Committee West

8.

Wednesday, 7 April 2021

SITE VISITS
Members are reminded that for the duration of the coronavirus pandemic, as decided
at the Group Leaders’ Meeting of 24 June 2020, no member site visits will be
conducted.
Therefore, any planning application deferred for a site visit at an Area Planning SubCommittee will be automatically referred to the District Development Management
Committee for determination.

9.

PLANNING APPLICATION - EPF/2932/20 STONESHOT FARM, HOE LANE,
NAZEING EN9 2RN (Pages 13 - 24)
To consider the attached report on an application for Variation of Condition 2 `Plan
numbers' of EPF/3500/17 allowed on appeal (Demolition of existing industrial
buildings, vacant stabling and 5 bedroom residential apartment and construction of
x18 no. semi-detached family houses and x18 no. 'affordable houses' with associated
off-street parking, private gardens & landscaping).

10.

PLANNING APPLICATION - EPF/0161/21 CEDAR LODGE, MOTT STREET,
WALTHAM ABBEY E4 7RW (Pages 25 - 34)
To consider the attached report for the demolition of existing structures, alterations to
existing vehicular access, retention of existing dwelling, construction of one detached
four bedroom house and provision of associated parking and landscaping.

11.

EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS
Exclusion: To consider whether, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government
Act 1972, the public and press should be excluded from the meeting for the items of
business set out below on grounds that they will involve the likely disclosure of exempt
information as defined in the following paragraph(s) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the
Act (as amended) or are confidential under Section 100(A)(2):
Agenda Item No

Subject

Nil

Nil

Exempt
Information
Paragraph Number
Nil

The Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006, which came
into effect on 1 March 2006, requires the Council to consider whether maintaining the
exemption listed above outweighs the potential public interest in disclosing the
information. Any member who considers that this test should be applied to any
currently exempted matter on this agenda should contact the proper officer at least 24
hours prior to the meeting.
Background Papers: Article 17 - Access to Information, Procedure Rules of the
Constitution define background papers as being documents relating to the subject
matter of the report which in the Proper Officer's opinion:
(a)

disclose any facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the
report is based; and

(b)

have been relied on to a material extent in preparing the report and does not
include published works or those which disclose exempt or confidential
3

Area Planning Sub-Committee West

Wednesday, 7 April 2021

information and in respect of executive reports, the advice of any political
advisor.
The Council will make available for public inspection for four years after the date of the
meeting one copy of each of the documents on the list of background papers.
12.

REFER SIGN (Pages 35 - 36)
If any member wants to refer a planning application to the District Development
Management Committee (DDMC), please hold up this refer sign in front of your
screen immediately after the vote has been taken. If at least 4 members agree/hold up
their refer signs, the application will be referred to DDMC.
Alternatively, if any member wishes to refer a planning application to DDMC, they
should propose a motion to refer this application immediately after the vote has been
taken. The Chairman will then ask for a seconder. After a seconder has been sought,
the Chairman will then ask if any other member wishes to support this resolution. If at
least 4 members agree then the application will be referred to DDMC, otherwise the
motion to refer will fail.

4

Agenda Item 2
Advice to Public and Speakers at virtual meetings of the Council’s District
Development Management Committee and Area Plans Sub-Committees
Are the meetings open to the public?
Yes all our meetings are open for you to attend virtually if you are a speaker, or to view on
the Council’s website at https://www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/your-council/watch-a-meeting/
Only in special circumstances are the public excluded.
When is the meeting?
Details of the date and time of the meeting are shown at the top of the front page of the
agenda along with the details of the contact officer and Members of the Committee.
Can I speak?
If you wish to speak you must register with Democratic Services by 4.00 p.m. on the
day before the meeting, by telephoning the number shown on the front page of the agenda.
Speaking to a Planning Officer will not register you to speak; you must register with
Democratic Services. Speakers are not permitted on Planning Enforcement or legal issues.
Who can speak?
Three classes of speakers are generally allowed: One objector (maybe on behalf of a
group), the local Parish or Town Council and the applicant or his/her agent. In some cases, a
representative of another authority consulted on the application may also be allowed to
speak.
What can I say?
You will be allowed to have your say about the application, but you must bear in mind that
you are limited to three minutes. At the discretion of the Chairman, speakers may clarify
matters relating to their presentation and answer questions from Committee members.
If you have registered to speak on a planning application to be considered by the District
Development Management Committee, Area Plans Sub-Committee East, Area Plans
Sub-Committee West or Area Plans Sub-Committee South you will address the Committee
virtually.
Only registered speakers will be admitted to the virtual meeting. This will be via the Zoom
meeting invite you have been emailed by Democratic Services. Speakers must NOT forward
this invite to anyone else under any circumstances. Alternatively, speakers may be
contacted by phone at the appropriate time in the meeting when a Democratic Services
Officer will contact you. If you are not present by the time your item is considered, the
Committee will determine the application in your absence. Speakers should be following the
meeting on the Council’s webcaster to enable them to know when their item will be
considered.
A transcript of your representation must be supplied in advance of the meeting to enable the
Democratic Services Officer to read this out on your behalf should there be a technical
problem. Please email your written statement to:
democraticservices@eppingforestdc.gov.uk

Page 5

Revised VM (September 2020)

Can I give the Councillors more information about my application or my objection?
Yes you can, but it must not be presented at the meeting. If you wish to send further
information to Councillors, their contact details can be obtained from Democratic Services or
our website https://rds.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1 Any information
sent to Councillors should be copied to the Planning Officer dealing with the application.
How are the applications considered?
The Committee will consider applications in the agenda order. On each case they will listen
to an outline of the application by the Planning Officer. They will then hear any speakers’
presentations.
The order of speaking will be (1) Objector, (2) Parish/Town Council, then (3) Applicant or
his/her agent. The Committee will then debate the application and vote on either the
recommendations of officers in the agenda or a proposal made by the Committee. Should
the Committee propose to follow a course of action different to officer recommendation, it is
required to give its reasons for doing so.
An Area Plans Sub-Committee is required to refer applications to the District Development
Management Committee where:
(a)

the Sub-Committee’s proposed decision is a substantial departure from:
(i)
(ii)
(iii)

the Council's approved policy framework; or
the development or other approved plan for the area; or
it would be required to be referred to the Secretary of State for approval as
required by current government circular or directive;

(b)

the refusal of consent may involve the payment of compensation; or

(c)

the District Development Management Committee have previously considered the
application or type of development and has so requested; or

(d)

the Sub-Committee wish, for any reason, to refer the application to the District
Development Management Committee for decision by resolution.

Further Information
Further information can be obtained from Democratic Services.

Page 6

Revised VM (September 2020)

Area Planning Sub-Committee West 2020-21
Members of the Committee and Wards Represented:

Chairman
Cllr Dorrell
Waltham
Abbey
Paternoster

Vice-Chairman
Cllr Lea
Waltham Abbey
North East

Cllr H Kane
Cllr S Kane
Waltham Abbey Waltham Abbey
South West
Honey Lane

Cllr Plummer
Waltham
Abbey South
West

Cllr Sartin
Roydon

Cllr Avey
Broadley
Common,
Epping Upland
and Nazeing

Cllr Bassett
Lower Nazeing

Cllr Heather
Waltham
Abbey
Honey Lane

Cllr Y
Knight
Lower
Nazeing

Cllr Leppert
Waltham
Abbey
Paternoster

Cllr Mitchell
Waltham
Abbey North
East

Cllr Stocker
Waltham
Abbey
Honey Lane

Page 7

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 4
EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL
COMMITTEE MINUTES
Committee:

Area Planning Sub-Committee
West

Date:

10 March 2021

Place:

Virtual Meeting on Zoom

Time:

7.00 - 7.17 pm

Members
Present:

D Dorrell (Chairman), J Lea (Vice-Chairman), N Avey, R Bassett, S Heather,
H Kane, S Kane, J Leppert, D Plummer, M Sartin and D Stocker

Apologies:

A Mitchell

Officers
Present:

J Godden (Heritage, Enforcement & Landscaping Team Manager), A Marx
(Development Manager Service Manager (Planning)), J Leither (Democratic
Services Officer), R Perrin (Democratic and Electoral Services Officer) and
A Buckley (Communications Officer)

65.

WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION
The Chairman made a short address to remind all present that the meeting would be
broadcast on the Internet, and that the Council had adopted a protocol for the
webcasting of its meetings. The Sub-Committee noted the Council’s Protocol for
Webcasting of Council and Other Meetings.

66.

WELCOME AND INTRODUCTION
The Chairman welcomed members of the public to the meeting and outlined the
procedures and arrangements agreed by the Council, to enable persons to address
the Sub-Committee in relation to the determination of applications for planning
permission.

67.

MINUTES
RESOLVED:
That the minutes of the meeting of the Sub-Committee held on 10 February
2021 be taken as read and signed by the Chairman as a correct record.

68.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
(a)

Pursuant to the Council’s Members’ Code of Conduct, Councillor M Sartin
declared a non-pecuniary interest in the following item of the agenda by virtue
of being the Council’s representative on the Lee Valley Regional Park
Authority. The Councillor had determined that she would remain in the
meeting for the consideration of the application and voting thereon:


EPF/3070/20 - Broxbourne Cruising Club Ltd, Green Lane, Nazeing,
EN10 6RS

Page 9

1

Area Planning Sub-Committee West

(b)

Pursuant to the Council’s Members’ Code of Conduct, Councillor S Heather
declared a non-pecuniary interest in the following item of the agenda by virtue
of being the Council’s representative on the Lee Valley Regional Park
Authority and acquainted with a resident of the Marina. The Councillor had
determined that he would remain in the meeting for the consideration of the
application and voting thereon:


69.

10 March 2021

EPF/3070/20 - Broxbourne Cruising Club Ltd, Green Lane, Nazeing,
EN10 6RS

ANY OTHER BUSINESS
It was reported that there was no urgent business for consideration at the meeting.

70.

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT LOCAL PLAN SUBMISSION VERSION - PLANNING
POLICY BRIEFING NOTE
It was noted that the Epping Forest District Local Plan Submission Version Planning
Policy Briefing note was available at:
http://www.efdclocalplan.org/wpcontent/uploads/2018/03/Planning-Policy-BriefingNote_Mar-2018.pdf

71.

SITE VISITS
The Sub-Committee Members noted that for the duration of the coronavirus
pandemic, any planning applications deferred for a site visit at an Area Planning SubCommittee would be automatically referred to the District Development Management
Committee (or Council) for determination.
There were no formal site visits requested by the Sub-Committee.

72.

PLANNING APPLICATION - EPF/3070/20 BROXBOURNE CRUISING CLUB LTD,
GREEN LANE, NAZEING EN10 6RS
APPLICATION No:

EPF/3070/20

SITE ADDRESS:

Broxbourne Cruising Club Ltd
Green Lane
Nazeing
Waltham Abbey
EN10 6RS

PARISH:

Nazeing

WARD:

Lower Nazeing

DESCRIPTION OF
PROPOSAL:

s73 Variation/Removal of condition 7 `Hours of use' for
EPF/0977/05 (Use of agricultural land as a boat club)
(Amended application to EPF/1254/20).

DECISION:

Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=646493

Page 10

2

Area Planning Sub-Committee West

10 March 2021

CONDITIONS
1

This consent shall inure solely for the benefit of the applicant (Broxbourne
Cruising Club) and for no other person or persons.

2

The clubhouse shall not be used for the sale of alcohol, including consumption
on the premises, nor shall any recorded/amplified music or other sound be
played within the premises including dancing during the hours of 23:00 to
07:00 on Sundays to Thursdays, and 00:30 to 07:00 on Fridays, Saturdays and
Bank Holidays.

3

No use shall be made of open areas within the application site for erecting
marquees or holding other social events without the prior written agreement of
the Local Planning Authority.

4

No amplified music or other sound shall be played outside the clubhouse and
such music or other sound shall not be played between 23.00 and 07.00 the
following day.

5

No external lighting shall be provided on the site or erected to any building or
fence on the land unless previously agreed in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.

6

No open storage shall take place on the site without the prior written
agreement of the Local Planning Authority.

7

There shall be no raising of ground levels on those parts of the site below
24.38m AOD.

8

Any walls of fencing constructed within or around the site shall be designed to
be permeable to flood water.

9

No soakaways shall be constructed in contaminated ground.

CHAIRMAN

Page 11

3

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12

Agenda Item 9

k
Trac

EFDC

Pa th ( um)

Epping Forest District Council

123

Pond

Stoneshot F arm

Tra ck

Willow
Cottage

Tank

Sto
n
Co esho
tta
ge t
Pad
doc
Vie k
w

Issues

Lodge Hall
Five
Acre
Lodge

Tank

39.3m

Virosa Nursery

Longfield Spring

O ldfield Spring

EFDC

Tank
Tank

Virosa
Residence

Unauthorised reproduction infringes
Crown Copyright and may lead to
prosecution or civil proceedings.
Contains Ordnance Survey Data. ©
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No:
100018534

Application Number:

EPF/2932/20

Site Name:

Stoneshot Farm Hoe Lane
Nazeing EN9 2RN
1:2500

Scale of Plot:

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Page 13

45.1m

Report Item No: 9
APPLICATION No:

EPF/2932/20

SITE ADDRESS:

Stoneshot Farm
Hoe Lane
Nazeing
Waltham Abbey
EN9 2RN

PARISH:

Nazeing

WARD:

Lower Nazeing

APPLICANT:

Mr Oliver Myrants-Wilson

DESCRIPTION OF
PROPOSAL:

Application for Variation of Condition 2 `Plan numbers' of
EPF/3500/17 allowed on appeal (Demolition of existing industrial
buildings, vacant stabling and 5 bedroom residential apartment and
construction of x18 no. semi-detached family houses and x18 no.
'affordable houses' with associated off-street parking, private
gardens & landscaping).

RECOMMENDED
DECISION:

Grant Permission (Subject to Legal Agreement)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=645901

CONDITIONS
1

The development hereby permitted shall begin not later than 15.03.2022.

2

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out and retained strictly in
accordance with the following approved plans: F126/20/S73/PL; 10.01, 10.02, 10.03,
10.04, 20.01, 20.02, 20.03, 30.01, 30.02, 30.03, 30.04, 30.05, 30.06, 1000, 1001,
2000, 2001

3

No construction works above ground level shall take place until samples of the types
and colours of the external facing materials have been submitted to and approved
by the local planning authority in writing prior to the commencement of the
development. The development shall be implemented in accordance with such
approved details.

4

No development shall take place until details of foul and surface water disposal have
been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The
development shall be implemented in accordance with such agreed details.

5

No development shall take place until wheel washing or other cleaning facilities for
vehicles leaving the site during construction works have been installed in
accordance with details which shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the
local planning authority. The approved installed cleaning facilities shall be used to
clean vehicles immediately before leaving the site.

Page 14

6

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted
Development Order 2015 as amended (or any other order revoking, further
amending or re-enacting that order) no extensions or outbuildings generally
permitted by virtue of Classes A, B and E of Part 1 of Schedule 2 to the Order shall
be undertaken without the prior written permission of the local planning authority.

7

Prior to any lighting being installed along the road leading to the new development, a
detailed lighting scheme following the Bat Conservation Trusts guidelines shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. Any lighting
thereafter installed shall be in accordance with the approved details.

8

Prior to any work being done to trees along the road leading to the new
development, an updated bat survey of these trees shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the local planning authority. Any further surveys, licenses or
mitigation recommended by this survey shall also be undertaken and shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority prior to the
commencement of any works to the trees.

9

No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory work,
until full details of both hard and soft landscape works (including tree planting) and
implementation programme (linked to the development schedule) have been
submitted to an approved in writing by the local planning authority. These works
shall be carried out as approved. The hard landscaping details shall include, as
appropriate, and in addition to details of existing features to be retained: proposed
finished levels or contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other minor
artefacts and structures, including signs and lighting and functional services above
and below ground. The details of soft landscape works shall include plans for
planting or establishment by any means and full written specifications and schedules
of plants, including species, plant sizes and proposed numbers /densities where
appropriate. If within a period of five years from the date of the planting or
establishment of any tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any
replacement is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously
damaged or defective another tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size
as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the local
planning authority gives its written consent to any variation.

10

No development, including works of demolition or site clearance, shall take place
until a Tree Protection Plan and Arboricultural Method Statement in accordance with
BS:5837:2005 (Trees in relation to construction) has been submitted to the local
planning authority and approved in writing. The development shall be carried out
only in accordance with the approved Tree Protection Plan and Arboricultural
Method Statement unless the local planning authority gives its written consent to any
variation.

11

Prior to the first occupation of the development the access arrangements, vehicle
parking and turning areas as indicated on the approved plans shall be provided,
hard surfaced, sealed and marked out. The access, parking and turning areas shall
be retained in perpetuity for their intended purpose.

12

A flood risk assessment and management and maintenance plan shall be submitted
to and approved by the local planning authority prior to commencement of
development. The assessment shall include calculations of increased run off and
associated volume of storm detention using WinDes or other similar practice tool.
The approved measures shall be carried out prior to the substantial completion of
the development and shall be adequately maintained in accordance with the
management and maintenance plan.

Page 15

13

No development shall take place until a scheme that includes the following
components to deal with the risks associated with contamination of the site shall
each be submitted to and approved by the local planning authority:
a) A site investigation scheme based on the Phase 1 Desktop Study report (Herts
and Essex Site Investigations September 2013) to provide information for a detailed
assessment of the risk to all receptors that may be affected, including those off-site.
b) The results of the site investigation and detailed risk assessment referred to in (a)
and based on these, an options appraisal and remediation strategy giving full details
of the remediation measures.
c) A verification plan providing details of the data that will be collected in order to
demonstrate that the works set out in the remediation strategy in (b) are complete
and identifying any requirements for longer term monitoring of pollutant linkages,
maintenance and arrangements for contingency action. Any changes to these
components require the express written consent of the local planning authority. The
scheme shall be implemented as approved.

14

No occupation of any part of the permitted development shall take place until a
verification report demonstrating completion of works set out in the approved
remediation strategy and effectiveness of the remediation shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the local planning authority. The report shall include results of
sampling and monitoring carried out in accordance with the approved verification
plan to demonstrate that the site remediation criteria have been met. It shall also
include any plan (a long-term monitoring and maintenance plan) for longer term
monitoring of pollutant linkages, maintenance and arrangements for contingency
action, as identified in the verification plan. The long-term monitoring and
maintenance plan shall be implemented as approved.

15

No development shall take place until a Phase 1 Land Contamination investigation
has been carried out. A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the local planning authority before commencement of the
Phase 1 investigation. The completed Phase 1 report shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the local planning authority prior to the commencement of any
necessary Phase 2 investigation. The report shall assess potential risks to present
and proposed humans, property including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland
and service lines and pipes, adjoining land, groundwaters and surface waters,
ecological systems, archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the
investigation must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment
Agency's "Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11",
or any subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance.

16

Should the Phase 1 Land Contamination preliminary risk assessment carried out
under condition 15 identify the presence of potentially unacceptable risks, no
development shall take place until a Phase 2 site investigation has been carried out.
A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
local planning authority before commencement of the Phase 2 investigation. The
completed Phase 2 investigation report, together with any necessary outline
remediation options, shall be submitted to and approved by the local planning
authority prior to any redevelopment or remediation works being carried out. The
report shall assess potential risks to present and proposed humans, property
including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland and service lines and pipes,
adjoining land, groundwaters and surface waters, ecological systems,
archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the investigation must be

Page 16

conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's "Model
Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", or any
subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance.
17

Should Land Contamination Remediation Works be identified as necessary under
condition 16, no development shall take place until a detailed remediation scheme to
bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use has been submitted to and
approved by the local planning authority. The development shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved remediation scheme unless otherwise agreed in
writing by the local planning authority. The remediation scheme must include all
works to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives and remediation criteria,
timetable of works and site management procedures and any necessary long-term
maintenance and monitoring programme. The scheme must ensure that the site will
not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the Environmental Protection Act
1990 or any subsequent version, in relation to the intended use of the land after
remediation.

18

Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme
and prior to the first use or occupation of the development, a verification report that
demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be produced
together with any necessary monitoring and maintenance programme and copies of
any waste transfer notes relating to exported and imported soils shall be submitted
to the local planning authority for approval. The approve monitoring and
maintenance programme shall be implemented.

19

In the event that any evidence of potential contamination is found at any time when
carrying out the approved development that was not previously identified in the
approved Phase 2 report, it must be reported in writing immediately to the local
planning authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in
accordance with a methodology previously approved by the local planning authority.
Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme, a
verification report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in writing of the
local planning authority in accordance with the immediately above condition.

20

All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 1830 hours Monday to Friday
and 0800 to 1300 hours on Saturday and at no time during Sundays or Public/bank
holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority.

21

An electric vehicle charging point shall be provided for each of the approved
dwellings prior to first occupation.

22

Prior to first occupation measures shall be incorporated within the development to
ensure a water efficiency standard of 110 litres (or less) per person per day.

23

Prior to first occupation of the dwellings hereby approved a biodiversity
enhancement plan shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the local planning
authority. This should include the recommendations in the Ecology report dated
December 2017 by Applied Ecology Ltd and include bird and bat boxes.

24

No removal of hedgerows, trees or shrubs or works to or demolition of buildings or
structures that may be used by breeding birds shall take place between 1st March
and 31st August inclusive, unless a competent ecologist has undertaken a careful,
detailed check of vegetation for active bird nests immediately before the vegetation

Page 17

is cleared/demolition is started and provided written confirmation that no birds will be
harmed and/or that there are appropriate measures in place to protect nesting bird
interest on site. As such written confirmation shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the local planning authority.

This application is before this committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an
objection from a Local Council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal, supported
by 1 local resident (Pursuant to The Constitution, Part 3: Scheme of Delegation to Officers from
Full Council)
Description of Site:
Stoneshot Farm is accessed off Hoe Lane, along a Willow lined drive, bounded by a drainage
ditch. The Site is a former rabbit/poultry farm complex that has diversified into stables and livery
facility and a number of B1 light industrial uses laid out in a linear fashion near to the site entrance.
The wider site contains open paddocks, many of which are used for grazing in association with the
livery use.
The site is located to the rear of Virosa Nursery and a small ribbon of detached properties adjacent
to the access. The site is otherwise surrounded by agricultural fields and is in the designated
Green Belt. Individual Preservation Orders have been placed upon trees that line the access into
the site and a Public Right of Way passes through the application site, following the drainage ditch,
which runs along the access then across the site in a north-east direction.
Hoe Lane begins in the settlement of Nazeing and extends into the countryside, quickly developing
the character of a winding country lane without footpath, serving various agricultural and nursery
sites, some of which have changed use over a number of years. This character is interspersed
with small clusters of housing, often set back from the highway, in a linear ribbon form following
the highway.
An extant planning permission for the demolition of existing industrial buildings, vacant stabling & 5
bedroom residential apartment and construction of 18 no. semi-detached family houses and 18
no.'affordable houses' with associated off-street parking, private gardens and landscaping exist on
the site.
Description of Proposal:
Planning permission is sought to vary condition 2 `Plan numbers' of EPF/3500/17 (Demolition of
existing industrial buildings, vacant stabling and 5 bedroom residential apartment and construction
of x18 no. semi-detached family houses and x18 no.'affordable houses' with associated off-street
parking, private gardens & landscaping). The variation includes:
-

-

Reconfiguration of Plots 1-18 to provide a mix of 3 and 4 bedroom dwellings, specifically
plots 7-10 as 3 bedroom dwellings (with associated internal amendments) and plots 3-6,
11&12 and 15&16 to be revised as 2.5 storey dwellings with rooms in the roofspace
creating 4 bedroom dwellings(with associated internal amendments);
Plots 9-12 reoriented;
Parking area to plots 7-13 reconfigured for better accessibility and manoeuvrability;
Reconfigured drives to plots 1-4;
Plots A13 and A14 ‘handed’ to face eastwards;
Internal layout of Plots 1 & 2, 3 & 4, 13 & 14 and 17 & 18 amended;
External elevations amended to suit internal arrangements;
Eaves level of dwellings increased by 225mm to avoid eaves lintel;

Page 18

-

Roof pitches revised to 40 degrees for all plots with ridge heights increased by around
700mm;
Roof plans updated to suit house types. House Types A and B include hipped roofs and
House Type C includes gable-ended roofs with dormers;
Street Scenes updated;
Render included to better indicate the materiality of the individual plots of 1-18

Relevant Site History:
EPF/0607/20 – Application for Variation of Condition 2 ‘Plan Numbers’ of EPF/3500/17 (Demolition
of existing industrial buildings, vacant stabling & 5-bedroom residential apartment and construction
of 18 no. semi-detached family houses and 18 no. ‘affordable houses’ with associated off-street
parking, private gardens and landscaping) – grant permission (subject to legal agreement) with
conditions
EPF/2512/18 - Demolition of existing industrial buildings, vacant stabling and 5 bedroom
residential apartment and construction of 14 no. detached houses and 12 no."affordable houses"
with associated off-street parking, private gardens and landscaping. (Revised application to
EPF/3500/17). – Refuse Permission
EPF/3500/17 - Demolition of existing industrial buildings, vacant stabling and 5 bedroom
residential apartment and construction of 18 no. semi-detached family houses and 18
no.'affordable houses' with associated off-street parking, private gardens and landscaping –
Refuse Permission (Allowed on Appeal)
EPF/0259/16 - Demolition of existing industrial buildings, vacant stabling and 5 bedroom
residential apartment and construction of 8 no. detached family houses and 10 no. 'affordable
houses' with associated off-street parking, private gardens and landscaping (Revised application
to EPF/0207/14 – Approve subject to legal agreement
EPF/0207/14 - Demolition of existing light industrial buildings and construction of 25 no. 2-bed, 6
no. 3-bed and 5 no. 4-bed houses (36 dwellings in total), with associated off street parking, private
gardens, communal amenity space, children’s play area and landscaping – Refused
Policies Applied:
Epping Forest Local Plan (1998) and Alterations (2006):
CP1 – Achieving Sustainable Development Objectives
CP2 – Protecting the Quality of the Rural and Built Environment
CP3 – New Development
CP4 – Energy Conservation
CP5 – Sustainable Building
CP6 – Achieving Sustainable Urban Development Patterns
CP7 – Urban Form and Quality
CP8 – Sustainable Economic Development
CP9 – Sustainable Transport
GB2A – General Restraint
GB7A – Conspicuous Development
RP4 – Contaminated Land
U2B – Flood Risk Assessment Zones
U3B – Sustainable Drainage Systems
DBE1 – New Buildings
DBE2 – Impact of Buildings on Neighbouring Property
DBE4 – Design and Location of New Buildings within Green Belt

Page 19

DBE5 – Design and Layout of New Development
DBE6 – Car Parking in New Development
DBE7 – Public Open Space
DBE8 – Private Amenity space
DBE9 – Amenity
H3A – Housing Density
H4A – Dwelling Mix
H5A – Affordable Housing
H6A – Site Thresholds for Affordable Housing
H7A – Levels of Affordable Housing
H8A – Availability of Affordable Housing in Perpetuity
H9A – Lifetime Homes
NC4 – Protection of Established Habitat
LL1 – Rural Landscape
LL2 – Resist Inappropriate Development
LL3 – Edge of Settlement
LL10 – Retention of Trees
LL11 – Landscaping Schemes
ST1 – Location of Development
ST2 – Accessibility of Development
ST4 – Road Safety
ST6 – Vehicle Parking
ST7– Criteria for Assessing Proposals (new development)
I1A – Planning Obligations
The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) has been adopted as national policy since March
2012. Paragraph 214 states that due weight should be given to relevant policies in existing plans
according to their degree of consistency with the framework. The above policies are broadly
consistent with the NPPF and should therefore be given appropriate weight.
Epping Forest District Local Plan (Submission Version) 2017:
The Epping Forest Local Plan Submission Version 2017 was submitted for independent
examination in September 2018. Accordingly, it can be endorsed as a material consideration to be
used in the determination of planning applications and be given appropriate weight in accordance
with paragraph 48 of the NPPF.
Paragraph 48 provides that decision-takers may give weight to relevant policies in emerging plans
according to:
•
the stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced the preparation, the
greater the weight that may be given);
•
the extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the less significant
the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given); and
•
the degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to the policies in the
NPPF (the closer the policies in the emerging plan to the policies in the NPPF, the greater the
weight that may be given).
In general terms it is considered that the Submission Version of the Plan is at an advanced stage
of preparation and the policies are considered to be consistent with the NPPF. As regards
unresolved objections, some policies within the Submission Version have more unresolved
objections than others. All of these factors have been taken into consideration in arriving at the
weight accorded to each of the relevant policies in the context of the proposed development listed
below:

Page 20

SP1 - Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
SP6 - Green Belt and District Open Land
H1 - Housing Mix and Accommodation Types
H2 - Affordable Housing
E1 - Employment Sites
T1 - Sustainable Transport Choices
DM 1 - Habitat Protection and Improving Biodiversity
DM3 - Landscape character, ancient landscapes and geodiversity
DM4 - Green Belt
DM5 - Green and Blue Infrastructure
DM9 - High quality design
DM10 - Housing Design and Quality
DM11 - Waste Recycling Facilities on New Development
DM 15 - Managing and Reducing Flood Risk
DM 16 - Sustainable Drainage Systems
DM18 - On Site Management of Waste Water and Water Supply
DM21 - Local Environmental Impacts, Pollution and Land Contamination
DM 22 - Air Quality
Summary of Representation:
No. of neighbours consulted: 108, 6 objections received
CRANBROOK - OBJECTION: development would be detrimental to highway safety and
inappropriate development within the Green Belt.
WOODEND – OBJECTION: Development would be detrimental to highway safety.
CARRERA ENGINEERING – OBJECTION: Development would be detrimental to highway safety.
THE OLD SCHOOL HOUSE – OBJECTION: Development considered to be major revisions to the
original application, development would be inappropriate development within the Green Belt,
would cause harm to the amenity of neighbouring properties and be detrimental to highway safety.
GLEBE HOUSE – OBJECTION: development would cause harm to neighbouring properties and
detrimental to the conservation area, detrimental to highway safety, increase in air pollution,
development considered to be major revisions to the original application.
WILLOW COTTAGE – OBJECTION: Development considered major revisions to the original
application, development would cause harm to the visual openness of the Green Belt and amenity
of neighbouring properties, impact on highway safety, the Epping Forest SAC and infrastructure.
Parish Council - OBJECTION:
-

A new planning application should have been submitted due to the significant change
proposed instead of changing a condition of the previous application;
- A fourth bedroom would increase parking requirements;
- Concern that it would exacerbate the traffic situation on Hoe Lane; and
- The effect on neighbouring properties of increasing the height by 1 metre. Contrary to
Policy DBE2 – Effect on Neighbouring Properties.
It was also noted that there was concern that the pedestrian area is in conflict with
vehicles/roads.

Page 21

Main Issues and Considerations:
The main issues to consider for the assessment of this application are as follows:
Design
Impact on Living Conditions of Neighbours
Development within the Metropolitan Green Belt
Highway Safety
Procedural Matters
It should be noted that this report shall focus on the planning merits and constraints of the
amendments put forward as part of this application and would not be a full reassessment of the
previous permission granted on appeal (ref: EPF/3500/17).
The Parish Council and several neighbour objections have stated that a full planning application
should have been submitted as the revisions should be considered major revisions to the scheme.
It is considered that these alterations to the original extant permission would not adversely alter
the nature or the original description of the development and existing legislation and case law
confirms that a variation of conditions application is an acceptable process by which to assess
these amendments.
Design
As stated above, the proposed changes to design and layout are as follows:
-

-

Reconfiguration of Plots 1-18 to provide a mix of 3 and 4 bedroom dwellings, specifically
plots 7-10 as 3 bedroom dwellings (with associated internal amendments) and plots 3-6,
11&12 and 15&16 to be revised as 2.5 storey dwellings with rooms in the roofspace
creating 4 bedroom dwellings(with associated internal amendments);
Plots 9-12 reoriented;
Parking area to plots 7-13 reconfigured for better accessibility and manoeuvrability;
Reconfigured drives to plots 1-4;
Plots A13 and A14 ‘handed’ to face eastwards;
Internal layout of Plots 1 & 2, 3 & 4, 13 & 14 and 17 & 18 amended;
External elevations amended to suit internal arrangements;
Eaves level of dwellings increased by 225mm to avoid eaves lintel;
Roof pitches revised to 40 degrees for all plots with ridge heights increased by around
700mm;
Roof plans updated to suit house types. House Types A and B include hipped roofs and
House Type C includes gable-ended roofs with dormers;
Street Scenes updated;
Render included to better indicate the materiality of the individual plots of 1-18.

Within the lifetime of the application, the applicants have provided further justification in relation to
the design of the current variations. The additional 0.5 storeys added to the 8 abovementioned
plots would make the best use of the roof space without significantly increasing the scale and
height of the buildings, nor compromising the massing of the overall development. The varied
design would provide a more interesting street scene overall, incorporating a positive transition
through the site heightened by the additions to the proposal’s form and appearance. These
changes would help to create a more attractive setting for future occupiers in which to live.
One of the neighbour objections received stated that the proposal would be detrimental to the
conservation area, however it should be noted that the application site is not sited within any

Page 22

conservation area and as such this point cannot be considered as part of the application’s
assessment.
The alterations made to the scheme would retain the semi-detached properties and small terrace
of affordable housing with a mix of semi-detached and terraced affordable houses which reflect
and integrate with the open-market housing in line with local guidance. The revised roof designs
would not differ significantly from those submitted as part of the previous permission and would be
considered acceptable. The dwellings would retain a suburban character previously identified
within the assessment for the original application and the use of more high quality materials would
provide a more varied and attractive street scene. The internal alterations would ensure that the
proposal would still be in accordance with the National Prescribed Space Standards (2015). The
reorientation of plots 9-12 would be in keeping with the rest of the scheme, as would handing plots
A13 and A14. It is considered that the variations to the original design of the proposal would not be
so different in form, appearance and layout so as to warrant the refusal of planning permission.
Impact on Living Conditions of Neighbours:
The Parish Council and several neighbours have objected to the scheme stating that the scheme
would be detrimental to the living conditions of neighbouring properties. Whilst there is an increase
in ridge height to the proposed dwellings, this is considered to be relatively minor and would not
cause unacceptable harm to the living conditions of neighbours in relation to loss of light,
overlooking or loss of outlook.
Green Belt
Some of the neighbours consulted have objected to the scheme stating that there would be an
adverse impact on the Metropolitan Green Belt as a result of this development.
The principle of development within the Metropolitan Green Belt is accepted, with the appeal
decision of the extant permission EPF/3500/17 holding significant weight in this regard arguing
that the planning balance of the scheme is tilted in favour of development versus the removal of
industrial uses from the site, notwithstanding the previously extant permission EPF/0259/16 being
viewed given significant weight in the appeal inspectors judgement.
It is considered that as the proposals put forward as part of this application are minor in nature
when compared to the entirety of the scheme, the variations would not cause any significant
material harm to the character and appearance of the Metropolitan Green Belt than what has
already been allowed on appeal. The proposal would therefore be acceptable in relation Green
Belt policy.
Highway Safety
The Parish Council and several neighbours have objected to the scheme stating that the proposal
would be detrimental to highway safety and the increase in bedrooms would result in an increase
in parking requirements.
The Council has adopted the Essex County Council Parking Standards (2009) which sets out a
minimum requirement of 2 off-street car parking spaces per 3 bedroom dwelling. The proposal
includes at least 2 off-street parking spaces for all dwelling types, which complies with these
standards. The number of dwellings have not been increased and these revisions would not be
considered to have a greater impact on highway safety, also being in accordance with the adopted
parking standards.

Page 23

Epping Forest SAC
As there is a planning permission for this site, and there is no change in the number of dwelling
houses it is considered that the revision to the development will have no additional impact to the
EFSAC, in terms of air quality and recreational pressure.
Conclusion
The proposed amendments would be acceptable in regard to design, would not cause excessive
harm to the living conditions of neighbouring properties, would not be detrimental to highway
safety and would not cause adverse harm to the character and appearance of the Metropolitan
Green Belt. It is recommended that planning permission is granted subject to conditions and the
signing of a Deed of Variation to the original legal agreement.

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:
Case Officer: Alastair Prince - Direct Line: 01992 564462
or if no direct contact can be made please email: contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk

Page 24

Agenda Item 10

Epping Forest District Council

123

EFDC

The Old Plough Cottage

Mott Street
Nursery

Magnolia

21.9m

Ro
se
Co
tta
ge

Silo

Cedar
Lodge

Pritchards Nursery
Tank

M
O
T
T
ST
RE
ET

Lira

Tan
k

25.6m
Beechside

Beechside Nursery

1

EFDC
4

Unauthorised reproduction infringes
Crown Copyright and may lead to
prosecution or civil proceedings.

Application Number:

EPF/0161/21

Site Name:

Cedar Lodge, Mott Street E4 7RW

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. ©
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No:
100018534

Scale of Plot:

1:1250

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Page 25

Report Item No: 10
APPLICATION No:

EPF/0161/21

SITE ADDRESS:

Cedar Lodge
Mott Street
Waltham Abbey
E4 7RW

PARISH:

Waltham Abbey

WARD:

Waltham Abbey High Beach

APPLICANT:

Mr Thomas Smith

DESCRIPTION OF
PROPOSAL:

Demolition of existing structures, alterations to existing vehicular
access, retention of existing dwelling, construction of one detached
four bedroom house and provision of associated parking and
landscaping.

RECOMMENDED
DECISION:

Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=647273

CONDITIONS
1

The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out and retained strictly in
accordance with the following approved plans: TS19-157-1, 2833.2, 2833.3, 2833.4,
2833.5, 2833.9, 2833.10, 2833.12B, 2833.13A and 2833.16.

3

Prior to preliminary ground works taking place, details of foul & surface water
disposal shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved
details, and shall be provided on site prior to the first occupation and shall be
retained for the lifetime of the development.

4

No preliminary ground works shall take place until a programme of archaeological
trial trenching and excavation has been secured and undertaken in accordance with
a written scheme of investigation which has been submitted to and approved by the
planning authority, in writing, and the development shall be carried out strictly in
accordance with the approved scheme and programme.

5

No development shall commence until an assessment of the risks posed by any
contamination, carried out in accordance with British Standard BS 10175:
Investigation of potentially contaminated sites - Code of Practice and the
Environment Agency's Model Procedures for the Management of Land
Contamination (CLR 11) (or equivalent British Standard and Model Procedures if
replaced), shall have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local
planning authority. If any contamination is found, a report specifying the measures to
be taken, including the timescale, to remediate the site to render it suitable for the

Page 26

approved development shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local
planning authority. The site shall be remediated in accordance with the approved
measures and timescale and a verification report shall be submitted to and approved
in writing by the local planning authority. If, during the course of development, any
contamination is found which has not been previously identified, work shall be
suspended and additional measures for its remediation shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the local planning authority. The remediation of the site shall
incorporate the approved additional measures and a verification report for all the
remediation works shall be submitted to the local planning authority within 21 days
of the report being completed and approved in writing by the local planning authority.
6

For the trees shown to be retained, no development, including works of demolition or
site clearance, shall take place until Tree Protection (in accordance with
BS:5837:2012 (Trees in relation to design, demolition and construction Recommendations) has been installed at the edge of the calculated rooting area as
shown on The Tree Bureau ‘Tree Constraints Plan’ drawing number TCP7600 dated
21st December 2020. It shall be retained throughout development activities unless
agreed otherwise with the Local Planning Authority.

7

No ground works shall take place until details of levels have been submitted to and
approved by the Local Planning Authority showing cross-sections and elevations of
the levels of the site prior to development and the proposed levels of all ground floor
slabs of buildings, roadways and accessways and landscaped areas. The
development shall be carried out in accordance with those approved details.

8

No construction works above ground level shall take place until (documentary and
photographic) details of the type and colours of the external finishes of the
development have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
details.

9

Hard and soft landscaping shall be implemented as shown on The Tree Bureau
‘structural landscape plan’ drawing number LAND7600 dated 21st December 2020
and the accompanying planting schedule unless the Local Planning Authority gives
its prior written approval to any alterations. If within a period of five years from the
date of the planting or establishment of any tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub,
or plant or any replacement is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes
seriously damaged or defective another tree or shrub, or plant of the same species
and size as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the
Local Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation.

10

Following completion of the measures identified in the approved remediation
scheme, and prior to the first use or occupation of the development, a verification
report that demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be
produced together with any necessary monitoring and maintenance programme and
copies of any waste transfer notes relating to exported and imported soils shall be
submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval. The approved monitoring and
maintenance programme shall be implemented.

11

In the event that any evidence of potential contamination is found at any time when
carrying out the approved development that was not previously identified in the
Phase 2 report, work shall be suspended and additional measures for its
remediation shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning
authority. The remediation of the site shall incorporate the approved additional
measures and a verification report for all the remediation works shall be submitted to

Page 27

the local planning authority within 21 days of the report being completed and
approved in writing by the local planning authority.
12

The building hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the window(s) in the flank
elevation(s) at first floor level and above, have been fitted with obscure glass with a
minimum privacy level 3 obscurity, and no part of that/those window[s] that is less
than 1.7 metres above the internal floor level of the room in which it is installed shall
be capable of being opened. Once installed the obscure glass shall be retained
thereafter.

13

Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved, 1 Electric Vehicle
Charging Point for each dwelling, shall be installed and retained thereafter for use by
the occupants of the site.

14

Prior to first occupation of the development, measures shall be incorporated within
the development to ensure a water efficiency standard of 110 litres (or less) per
person per day.

15

Prior to first occupation of the development, the recommendations as set out in the
Ecological Survey by John Dobson - Essex Mammal Surveys (dated April 2019)
shall be implemented in full and retained as such.

16

Prior to first occupation of the building hereby permitted, the buildings/extensions
shown to be demolished on the approved plans, shall be removed from the site.

17

Prior to the first occupation of the development the access arrangements, vehicle
parking and turning areas as indicated on the approved plans shall be provided,
hard surfaced, sealed and marked out. The access, parking and turning areas shall
be retained in perpetuity for their intended purpose.

18

No unbound material shall be used in the surface treatment of the vehicular access
within 6 metres of the highway boundary.

19

There shall be no discharge of surface water onto the Highway.

20

Wheel washing or other cleaning facilities for vehicles leaving the site during
construction works shall be installed and utilised to clean vehicles immediately
before leaving the site. Any mud or other material deposited on nearby roads as a
result of the development shall be removed.

21

No deliveries, external running of plant and equipment or demolition and
construction works, other than internal works not audible outside the site boundary,
shall take place on the site other than between the hours of 07:30 to 18:00 on
Monday to Friday and 08:00 to 13:00 on Saturday and not at all on Sundays, Public
or Bank Holidays without the prior written permission of the Local Planning Authority.

22

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) Order 2015 (as amended) (or any other order revoking and
re-enacting that order) no development permitted by virtue of Classes A & E of Part
1 to schedule 2 shall be undertaken.

23

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (as amended) (or any order revoking
and re-enacting that Order with or without modification), no fences, gates or walls
shall be erected within the curtilage of any dwellinghouse forward of any wall of that
dwellinghouse which fronts onto a road.

Page 28

24

All material excavated from the below ground works hereby approved shall be
removed from the site unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.

This application is before this Committee since it is for a type of development that cannot be
determined by Officers if five objections are received (or in cases where less than 5 were
consulted, a majority of those consulted object) on grounds material to the planning merits of the
proposal (Pursuant to The Constitution, Part 3: Scheme of Delegation to Officers from Full
Council).
Site and Surroundings
The site consists of a detached dwelling located on the north eastern side of Mott Street and is
surrounded by various properties including residential dwellings, horticultural nurseries, and
commercial sites (that are former horticultural nurseries). The site is located within the
Metropolitan Green Belt. It is not listed nor in a conservation area.
Proposal
The proposal is for the demolition of existing structures, alterations to existing vehicular access,
retention of existing dwelling, construction of one detached four-bedroom house and provision of
associated parking and landscaping.
This is an amended application to EPF/0180/20 & EPF/0530/20.
Relevant Planning History
EPF/2877/15 - Certificate of Lawful Development for proposed single storey side extensions (x2)
and 2 storey rear extension - Lawful
EPF/0431/16 - Certificate of Lawful Development for existing use of land as residential garden Lawful
EPF/0176/17 - Outline application with all matters reserved for proposed demolition of existing
dwelling and outbuilding and erection of 2 new build dwellings - Approved
EPF/2432/19 - Demolition of existing 1 no. 4-bed house & associated outbuildings & erection of
two pairs of 4-bed semi-detached houses – Refused & Dismissed on Appeal on Green Belt
Grounds, Impact on Character and EFSAC.
EPF/0180/20 - Outline Planning Permission for demolition of existing dwelling and outbuilding, and
construction of 2 new dwellings (Renewal of previous approved consent EPF/0176/17) - Approved
EPF/0181/20 - Application for a Lawful Development Certificate for a Proposed new access & an
outbuilding – Lawful
EPF/0530/20 - Demolition of x1 no. 4-bed house (Cedar Lodge) & associated outbuildings, and
erection of one pair of 4-bed semi-detached houses and one detached 4-bed house – Refused on
Green Belt Grounds, Impact on Character and EFSAC.

Page 29

Development Plan Context
Local Plan (1998) and Alterations (2006)
Section 38(6) Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that planning applications
should be determined in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations
indicate otherwise. The Development Plan currently comprises the Epping Forest District Council
Adopted Local Plan (1998) and Alterations (2006).
The following policies within the current Development Plan are considered to be of relevance to
this application:
CP1
CP2
CP3
CP6
CP7
U3B
GB2A
GB7A
DBE1
DBE4
DBE8
DBE9
LL10
LL11
ST4
ST6

Achieving Sustainable Development Objectives
Protecting the Quality of the Rural and Built Environment
New Development
Achieving Sustainable Urban Development Patterns
Urban Form and Quality
Sustainable Drainage Systems
Development in The Green Belt
Conspicuous Development
Design of New Buildings
Design in the Green Belt
Private Amenity Space
Neighbouring Amenities
Adequacy of Provision for Landscape Retention
Landscaping Schemes
Road Safety
Vehicle Parking

National Planning Policy Framework (Framework) (2019)
The Framework is a material consideration in determining planning applications. As with its
predecessor, the presumption in favour of sustainable development remains at the heart of the
NPPF. Paragraph 11 of the NPPF provides that for determining planning applications this means
either;
a) approving development proposals that accord with an up-to-date development plan without
delay; or
b) where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies which are most
important for determining the application are out-of-date, granting permission unless:
i.
the application of policies in the NPPF that protect areas or assets of particular
importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed; or
ii.
any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the
benefits, when assessed against the policies in the NPPF taken as a whole
The presumption in favour of sustainable development does not change the statutory status of the
development plan as the starting point for decision making, but policies within the development
plan need to be considered and applied in terms of their degree of consistency with the
Framework.
In addition to paragraph 11, the following paragraphs of the NPPF are considered to be of
relevance to this application:
Paragraphs
Paragraph

108 - 110
117

Page 30

Paragraphs
Paragraphs
Paragraph

124, 127
133, 143 – 146
175

Epping Forest District Local Plan Submission Version (LPSV) (2017)
Although the LPSV does not currently form part of the statutory development plan for the district,
on 14th December 2017 the Council resolved that the LPSV be endorsed as a material
consideration to be used in the determination of planning applications.
Paragraph 48 of the NPPF provides that decision-takers may give weight to relevant policies in
emerging plans according to:




The stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced the preparation, the
greater the weight that may be given);
The extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the less significant
the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given); and
The degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to the policies in
the NPPF (the closer the policies in the emerging plan to the policies in the NPPF, the
greater the weight that may be given).

The LPSV has been submitted for Independent Examination and hearing sessions were held on
various dates from February 2019 to June 2019. On the 2nd August, the appointed inspector
provided her interim advice to the Council covering the substantive matters raised at the hearing
and the necessary actions required of the Council to enable her to address issues of soundness
with the plan without prejudice to her final conclusions.
As the preparation of the emerging Local Plan has reached a very advanced stage, subject to the
Inspector's Advice regarding the need for additional Main Modifications, significant weight should
be accorded to LPSV policies in accordance with paragraph 48 of Framework. The following table
lists the LPSV policies relevant to the determination of this application and officers'
recommendation regarding the weight to be accorded to each policy.
Policy
SP1 Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
SP2 Spatial Development Strategy 2011-2033
H1 Housing Mix and Accommodation Types
T1 Sustainable Transport Choices
DM2 Epping Forest SAC and the Lee Valley SPA
DM3 Landscape Character, Ancient Landscapes and Geodiversity
DM4 Green Belt
DM5 Green and Blue Infrastructure
DM9 High Quality Design
DM10 Housing Design and Quality
DM15 Managing and Reducing Flood Risk
DM16 Sustainable Drainage Systems
DM19 Sustainable Water Use
DM20 Low Carbon and Renewable Energy
DM21 Local Environmental Impacts, Pollution and Land Contamination
DM22 Air Quality

Page 31

Weight Afforded
Significant
Some
Some
Significant
Some
Significant
Significant
Significant
Significant
Some
Significant
Significant
Significant
Significant
Significant
Some

Summary of Representations
Number of neighbours Consulted: 12. 6 response(s) received
Site notice posted: No, not required
MOTT STREET NURSERY – Comments on non-planning merits
ROSE COTTAGE, BEECHSIDE, BRIGADOON, MAGNOLIA COTTAGE, LIRA (BEECHSIDE
NURSERY) – Objections – Summarised as;





Inappropriate development;
Impact on neighbouring amenities;
Impact on the Green Belt;
Poor Quality Design, out of character, cramped & visually Intrusive.

WALTHAM ABBEY TOWN COUNCIL – No objection
Planning Considerations
The main issue is whether the previous reasons for refusal have been overcome for EPF/0530/20.
The reasons for refusal are:
1. The proposed development, by reason of the increased scale, mass and bulk of the built
form, would represent inappropriate development in the Green Belt which would be harmful
to the character and openness of the Green Belt, contrary to policies GB2A and GB7A of
the adopted Local Plan and Alterations, policies SP6 and DM4 of the Local Plan
Submission Version (2017), and the NPPF.
2. The application does not provide sufficient information to satisfy the Council, as competent
authority, that the proposed development will not adversely affect the integrity of the
Epping Forest Special Area for Conservation and there are no alternative solutions or
imperative reasons of overriding public interest why the proposed development should be
permitted. In the absence of such evidence, and of a completed Section 106 planning
obligation to mitigate against the adverse impact that it will have on the Epping Forest
Special Area for Conservation in terms of recreational pressure and air pollution, the
proposed development is contrary to policies CP1 and CP6 of the Epping Forest Local
Plan (1998) and Alterations (2006), policies DM 2 and DM 22 of the Epping Forest District
Local Plan Submission Version 2017, the NPPF, and the requirements of the Habitats
Regulations 2017.
3. The proposed development introduces an inappropriate urban form to the site in its built
form and the extent and finish of the hard surfacing to the frontage, out of character with
the surrounding area and thereby intrusive to the amenities of surrounding residents and to
the general street scene, contrary to policies CP1, CP2, DBE2, DBE4 and DBE9 of the
adopted Local Plan and Alterations, policies DM9 and DM10 of the Local Plan Submission
Version (2017), and the NPPF.
Reason for Refusal 1
The principle of the development for two dwellings (1 replacement dwelling and an additional
dwelling) on this site has already been established under an outline application with all maters
reserved (EPF/0180/20). As part of this outline application, the volume of the proposed
development were shown on the plans, so only the spatial impact of the development on the
openness of the Green Belt was considered and found to be acceptable, however as no elevations

Page 32

of the proposed dwellings were provided, no assessment on the visual impact to the openness of
the Green Belt was carried out.
In light of the above, as the scale and bulk of the proposed additional dwelling is shown on the
proposed elevation plan, it is considered that there would be a limited reduction to the openness of
the Green Belt, in visual terms. Spatially whilst the host dwelling will no longer be demolished as
per EPF/0180/20, the other elements as shown on the plans would be demolished and taken
together with the fallback LDC (EPF/2877/15), any spatial impact would be negligible. Thus, the
proposed development would not have a greater impact to the openness of the Green Belt than
the current development.
Thus, it is considered that the first reason for refusal has been overcome.
Reason for Refusal 2
As there is an extant outline permission (EPF/0180/20) for an additional dwelling on this site, it is
considered that the proposed development will have no additional impact to the EFSAC, in terms
of air quality and recreational pressure.
Thus, it is considered that this reason for refusal has been overcome.
Reasons for Refusal 3
In terms of the design of the proposed dwelling, it would have a neutral impact to the character
and appearance of the locality. There is sufficient spacing around the proposed dwelling, including
a visual gap from the host house, and the common boundary with Rose Cottage. A suitable hard
and soft landscaping is also proposed, so officers consider that the proposed development is
acceptable.
Thus, it is considered that the final reason for refusal has been overcome.
Other Considerations
It is considered that the provision of the access points as shown on the plans would be sufficient
enough to enable the proposed redevelopment of the site, and no objections have been raised by
the Highways Officer.
Furthermore, there is no material impact to the living conditions of the adjoining neighbour (Rose
Cottage) and the host house from the proposed dwelling, in terms of loss of light, overshadowing,
loss of privacy, overbearing and visual impact that warrants a reason for refusal.
Also, there is ample amenity space retained for the host house, and that available for future users
of the proposed dwelling.
Conclusion
For the reasons set out above having regard to all the matters raised, it is recommended that
conditional planning permission be granted.
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:
Case Officer: Muhammad Rahman - Direct Line: 01992 564415
or if no direct contact can be made please email: contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk

Page 33

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 12

Page 35

Page 36

